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17. DESCRIPTION
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[ Altered (] Unaltered [J Moved [ Original Site
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if kenown) PHYSICAL APPEARAMNCE
Sitting on the 1ip of a hill which slopes to a stream in the bottom
land below is a sturdy stone house of coursed rubble, reminiscent of the
structuras of the early German settlers in this area who cams to North
Carolina from Pennsylvania. The thres-bay main facade of the Weidnsr Rock
House has a central entrance protected by a hip roof porch that extends
across the first level of the facada. The second floor lacks a central bay.
The date "18LL" is inscribed on one of the stones near the top of the east
side of the main facada, just beneath the simple box cornice. The windows
of the first story have nine-ovar-siz sash and vartically shsathad shutters
held in place by strap hinges. The windows at the second level have six-
over-six sash. The end chimney s, which project only slightly from the wallsg,
are flanked by windows at each lewel; the windows in the gables are small
with six lights. An exception to the fenestration pattern occurs on the
west end whare a one-story frams wing joins the rear half of this facade.
Here a door to the wing replaces the window space at the first level and the .
corresponding opaning at the second level is omitted. The rear of the main
block is coverad by a two-story, box-like addition which replaced a larga
shed porch. The gable roof frame addition to the west has a stone end o
chimney, a shed porch across the front and a shed addition across the rear.
This wing has undergone many changes. An old, six-over-six sash window witd
raised-panaled shutters is located on the front side of the wing. N

The stone main block has two large rooms atl each level. The interior
combinaes soma quite early fabric with mid-ninetesnth century elements. The| ¥5
central entrance opens into the large east room which has wide, symmetrically o
molded architraves with all exterior openings sel in deep revsals ss thay s
are throughout the house. Opposite the entrance bay is a similar door whic

~leads onto a large porch, recently converted to a sun porch. A door in the t
center of the partition which separates the two first-floor rooms has been (
“ blocked by a stair on the west side of the partition. FEntrance to the west
room is now gained through a door near the vear of the house in this parti-| =
ticn. The mantels in ths east and west rooms are similar, each consisting e
of a very wide symmetrically molded band around the fire opening topped hy
a shallow molded shelf. Fach of tha doors in the .east rocm has aight flat

panels. The casss of tha front and rear doors of the east room are
symme trically molded and have large, unadornad corner blocks. These doors,
like many throughout the house, have box locks. The ceilings throughout
the house are flush sheathad and the plastered walls carry a small moldad
"wooden cornice. The washt room has a door consisting of four equal sized
panels below sixteen glaged lights which is centered to the rear of the
room. Also in the same room, to thz rear of tha chimney, 1s a door with
six raised panels, swrmounted by a thres-light transom, leading to the wing
The wing side of this door has vertical sheathing and is supported by strap
hinges. In the southwest corner of the west room is a bullt-in corner cup-
board with wide symwmetrically molded strips (similar to the door cases) and
flat-panaled doors. The stair that rises from the west room appears to be
a twenbisth century addition, with accass Lo the second Iloor originally
gainad by exterior stairs housed under the rear two-story porch, now ra-
modeled,

The two rooms on the sscond floor, main block, now connzct in the rsav
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to the rooms was gained only by exterior doors near ths center of the rear
facade; the door frames still remain and lead into the remodeled rear of the
house. The mantels on the second floor are nsarly the same size but of
different design. The one in the weslt room appears to be ths sarliest in the
houss; 1t follows a Georglan design, with a narrow molded architrave around
the. wide brick border of the fire opsning and two horizontal, raissd panels
bensath a small molded shelf. The east room has a mantel of the typical mid-
ninatesnth century variety, with plain pilasters supporting a frieze whose
lower edge follows a steap ogese-archad outlina. It is surmountad by a small,
moldad shelf. The wjndow fram@ﬂ on the second floor are simple with unadornsd
cornar blocks. The architrave extends to the floor to frams a plastered pansl
bﬁnoa+h the heavy, plain w1nd0w sill. The doors al the second level hava six
‘eigsed panels with tha exception of the one leading to the enclosed stair
locatad in the wesl room which gives access ho the atbtic. It is mada up of
five horizontal panels which are [{lat on the front and raised on tha rear.

A long, narrow hall leads from the first-Iloor west room of the main
block to the main room of the wing. The wing irooms are quite plain with walls
having both horizontal and vertical sheathing. A curious feature is & range
of horizontal, flat panels which rises about twelve inches from the floor and
extends along the north wall of the hall across the. front of thy wing. A door
in the main room with six raised panels leads to the attic stair which risa:
on the south side of the fireplace which has been reworked. The stair consis
of a ssries of winders which are visible from the main room. The remainder
of the wing has baen considerably albared.

[

L
¥

at ths top of the steps; however, il appears that before the remodeling, accass
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‘Henry Whitensr (Weidner), Jr. Tivad there until 180} whan he sold +he

Reflecting the building traditions of bhs indusbriouvs Gorman settlers
who comprised a largs portion of the early population of Catawba County,
the Weidner Rock House is an interesting combination of several intorior
architectural gtyl.sa AlqnuLc shona construction is commonly associated
with German setilers from the Pennsylvania area, this is one of the few
surviving examples in WNorth Carolina. The house is pressrvad in its rural
setting.

The land on which the Weidnar Rock House is locatad was first settlaed
by Henry Weidner (Johann Heinrick Weidner), a German immigrant from the
region of Saxony. He had arrived on the ship Molly at Philadelphia in
17L1 and received his first land grants in what was thsn Anson County in
1750, His holdings amounted to 1,2h0 acres on Henry's Fork of the south
fork of tha Catbawba River. (Thls tribubary is now known as Henry River.)
According to the State Records of North Carolina, ths area was "largely
settlad by Germans from Pa' nsylvania. The pioneer of these immigrants was

Henry'Wéldner (Whitner), who, abonbt 1745, came alone to this region to hunt
and trap. o lived in peace with the Tndians who still held the soil.
Tradition rel a+“sj howgver, thal about the time of the French and Indian

War, some of Weildner's ralaulvmm 1iving near him were murdered by Indians.
After he asbandonad his homestead for safer territory in South Carolina, se:
eral years passed before Weldner returnsd to his Worth Carolina home--the
first Weidnsr house, built largely of stone, and located over a spring.

A road from the present site of Hickory led by the Waldner residence
to Charleston, South baf011aa By 1779 it was known as the Ramsour Road.
Its existance lends credibility to the tradition that troops musterad at
Weidner's before marchinz to the Battle of King's Mountain in which ons of
Weidnsr's sons, Abram, was killed. Two years hafore his death in 1792
Henry Weidnsyr, Sr., deeded soma of his land to his son, fanry, and it is

8T,
robably aboutl this time that tha present Waeidnsr Rock iouse was beszun.
I &

house with 392 acres to Jacob Summey, Jr., for $4,000. George Summey

inherited tha house and sold it with 93 acres for $1,000 to John Wilfong,
fal and businsssman, and the son

Jr., in 1826, TWHlfong was a successiul rar

of Catawba County's only soldier of thas Conbinental Line. Accord ing to a
tax list of 1837, ‘John Wilfong, Jr. owned ofe): Tract' of 579 acres
worth $1,500, a S7-acre tract worth Shli. o 03-ac tract joining J.
Whitensr snd others' worth $350. The latter tract is no doubt the Weidner
Rock House and its relatively low valuation al this time suggests that ths
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house may have fallen into disrepair or, as currant information suggasts, it
may have been made uninhabitable by flooding. Tradition says that in o single
day's effort involving teams of mule-drawn wagons moving in a circle, the housd
was moved to its present location higher up on 2 hill side. The reconstruction
»]

of the house probably occurred in 18Ll, as attesled by that date incised in a
stong high up under the saves.

Wilfong's holdinge amounted to 2,207 acres worth $21,750 according to the
United States Agricultural Schedule of 1860. Tn addition to his success as a
farmer he was instrumantal in starting the Westarn North Carolina Railroad.
Wilfong and his wife ware the parents of six Confederats soldiers. Ganeral
Robert E. Les, writing to thank Mrs. Wilfong for a gift in 1865, sai
more gratifiesd at your devoling so many sons to the defense of the country.

If they are all squal to the ons I know, Captain Wilfong, 12 N.C. you should

id "I am
be truly grataful.”

When he died in 1883, Wilfong devised 'my Rock house plantation" to his
wife for her 1ife, and then to his son James E. wWilfong. The Weidnsr Roclk
House was owned by mouwbers of the Wilfong family until 1942; it is now owned bs

Alex A. Shuford, IV, of Hickory, who makes it his homs.
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